
 

 Page 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
PAJARO DUNES GEOLOGIC HAZARD ABATEMENT DISTRICT 

VIRTUAL MEETING via ZOOM 

 

 Governor Newsom through CA Executive Order N-33-20 (issued on March 19th, 2020) issued a 
shelter-in-place order for the State of California. The order was further strengthened by the 
County of Santa Cruz Health Officer Order issued on March 31st, 2020 which discourages 

residents from traveling (even between their own properties) for non-essential reasons.  CA 
Executive Order N-25-20 allows for modifications to the Brown Act ensuring that public 

meetings can continue under this order through telephone or video conferencing.  As such, the 
Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District will be hosting their regularly scheduled 

April 11th, 2020 meeting online via the Zoom platform and encourages residents to participate 
from their current location via video conference or telephone.   

Saturday, April 11th, 2020 9:00 a.m. 
 

Zoom Meeting ID: 291-012-071 
Zoom Meeting PW: 553907 

 
See below the agenda for how to download Zoom for a computer or smartphone (both audio 

and video available) or to participate via dial-in telephone (audio only).  Also, please review the 
etiquette guidelines and reminders.  

 
Participation information and the meeting packet will be available at www.pajarodunesbeach.com 
GHAD tab.  If you have any questions please contact the District Clerk at pdghad@gmail.com  

  
 
A. OPEN SESSION CALL TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
Roll Call 
 
John Cullen, Secretary 
David Ferrari, Community Liaison 
Jim Griffin, Director  

Jack Feinstein, Director 
Raphael Kraw, Director 
Sarah Mansergh, Clerk

 
 
B. MEMBER COMMENTS  

 
Matters under the jurisdiction of the Board and not on the posted agenda, may be addressed by members 
of the public before the Board for consideration. However, California law prohibits the Board from taking 
action on any matter which is not on the posted agenda unless it is determined to be an emergency by the 
Board of PDGHAD. Any person wishing to address the Board during the Member Comment period shall 

http://www.pajarodunesbeach.com/
mailto:pdghad@gmail.com


 

 Page 2 
 

be permitted to be heard for up to 3 minutes, A) individuals may speak only once and B) the Board is 
unable to address any owner comments in depth, but may choose to direct the Clerk to follow-up on the 
matter for a future meeting. 
 
C. PRESIDENT’S REMARKS 

 
The President will use this opportunity to inform the public of issues affecting the District and other 
items of a general nature not otherwise provided for on this agenda.  
 

A. Overview of online meeting layout and how to actively participate 
B. 2020 Regular Meeting Dates 

May 16th 
August 8th 
November 14th 
December 12th 

 
C. Directors -submit yearly Form 700 to the County Clerk’s office-online preferred.   
 
 
D. CONSENT CALENDAR  

 
All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the Board of Directors and 
will be enacted by one motion at the appropriate time. There will be no separate discussion on these 
items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and will be 
considered separately.  
 

1. Approval of meeting minutes of November 9th, 2019; December 14th, 2019 and February 8th, 
2020. 
 

E. TREASURER’S REPORT  
 

2. Financial Reports  
• Financial Report through March 31st, 2020 
• Warrant listing 

 
 
F. MEETING reports   

 
3.  Meetings attended by Directors at District expense since the last meeting of the Board (per                 
AB1234 requirements). Such reports may be made orally or in writing.  
  

G. NEW BUSINESS  
 

4. ITEM-Update from Cal Engineering and Geology on document preparation for permit submission.   
 

a. Board report  
b. Public comment  
c. Board discussion  
d. Board action /direction 



 

 Page 3 
 

 
5. ITEM – Provide input for the PDGHAD Investment Policy Statement including a review of the 
Santa Cruz County General Fund as a possible investment option. 

a. Board report  
b. Public comment  
c. Board discussion  
d. Board action /direction 

 
6. ITEM – Review draft budget for FY 2020/21 

a. Board report  
b. Public comment  
c. Board discussion  
d. Board action /direction 

 
7. ITEM – Designate officers for the Board 

a. Board report  
b. Public comment  
c. Board discussion  
d. Board action /direction 

 
7. ITEM – Decide on website hosting option 

a. Board report  
b. Public comment  
c. Board discussion  
d. Board action /direction 

 
H. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND CONCERNS 

Members of the Board of Directors may address items of concern at this time, and may request that 
items be placed on future agendas in accordance with the By-laws of the Board. 

I. ADJOURNMENT  

The next Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for May 16th, 2020, at 9:00 a.m. at the 
offices of the Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District, Board Room, Pajaro Dunes, 2661 

Beach Road, Watsonville, CA 95076. Individuals who require special accommodations are requested 
to contact the District Clerk by calling (831) 818-9253, no less than 72 hours prior to the meeting or 
in the case of a Special Meeting, as soon as possible after the Agenda is posted. Copies of the agenda 

will be available 72 hours prior to the meeting and may be obtained by contacting the District at 
(831) 761-7744. All meetings are noticed and conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act  

 

 

 



 

 Page 4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Zoom Meeting Set-up for PDGHAD meeting 

 

You can join Zoom with your computer or with your smartphone.  Please download the program (as 
described below) for your preferred instrument and call Sarah to verify usability.   

 

Computer: 

1) Go to zoom.us 

  
2) Click Join a Meeting (red arrow) 
3) It will prompt you to download and run Zoom (The program should open automatically.  If it 

doesn’t then go to your programs and start it manually) 
4) Click Join a Meeting 
5) Meeting ID: see agenda 
6) Choose a Name and Click Join 
7) Test Password: see agenda 
8) You will be admitted to the meeting and can use the designated public participation times to ask a 

question verbally or the chat feature (bubble icon on lower menu) at any time to ask questions 
that can be read out during the public comment period.   

 

 

Smartphone: 

1) Go to your application download center 
2) Download “Zoom Cloud Meetings” by Meet Happy 



 

 Page 5 
 

 
3) Click “Join a Meeting” 
4) Enter Meeting ID: see agenda 
5) Enter Password: see agenda 
6) You will be admitted to the meeting and can use the designated public participation times to ask a 

question verbally or the chat feature (click on the 3 dots More button on the bottom right and 
select chat) at any time to ask questions that can be read out during the public comment period. 

 

Telephone (audio only): 

1) Call: Dial by your location 
        669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
        888 788 0099 US Toll-free 
        877 853 5247 US Toll-free 

2) Enter the Meeting ID: See agenda 
3) Enter the Meeting PW: See agenda 
4) Follow the instructions 
5) You can send questions (or ask for assistance) outside of the public comment period to 

pdghad@gmail.org to be read during the discussion public comment time.   

Some etiquette- 

1) We can see you: 
a. Warn your household members they may be on video 
b. Leave the phone/computer where it is when taking a break 

2) Turn down ambient music/noises 
3) Mute yourself when you are not speaking to us (you will be muted upon entering the meeting and 

during presentations).  You can use the chat feature to ask questions when muted.   
4) Unmute when you are speaking to us  

Some common solutions: 

Want to see everyone in gallery view (everyone at once)? 

Computer: Click Gallery View on the top right menu 
Smart phone:  Swipe left 
 

Camera not showing the correct view?   

Computer: Go to the Video icon on the bottom left of your computer screen and click on the 
^ to open the menu to switch your camera.   
Smartphone: Cick the camera reverse button on the top menu 

mailto:pdghad@gmail.org


 

 Page 1 
 

 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAJARO DUNES GEOLOGIC HAZARD ABATEMENT DISTRICT 

MEADOW ROOM, Pajaro Dunes, 2661 Beach Road, Watsonville, CA 95076 

Please note the change of venue to the Meadow Room 
Saturday, November 9th, 2019 9:00 a.m. 

 
A. OPEN SESSION CALL TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
Roll Call 
 
John Cullen, Secretary-present 
David Ferrari, Community Liaison-present 
Jim Griffin, Director –not present  

Jack Feinstein, Director-not present  
Raphael Kraw, Director-present 
Sarah Mansergh, Clerk-present

 
Mike Rodriguez (attorney), Wendy Cumming (accountant) were also present. 
 
 
B. MEMBER COMMENTS  

 
Matters under the jurisdiction of the Board and not on the posted agenda, may be addressed by members 
of the public before the Board for consideration. However, California law prohibits the Board from taking 
action on any matter which is not on the posted agenda unless it is determined to be an emergency by the 
Board of PDGHAD. Any person wishing to address the Board during the Member Comment period shall 
be permitted to be heard for up to 3 minutes, A) individuals may speak only once and B) the Board is 
unable to address any owner comments in depth, but may choose to direct the Clerk to follow-up on the 
matter for a future meeting. 
 
C. PRESIDENT’S REMARKS 

 
The President will use this opportunity to inform the public of issues affecting the District and other 
items of a general nature not otherwise provided for on this agenda.  

• Meeting Calendar 2019 
December 14th  
 
2020 Regular Meeting Dates 
February 8th 
April 11th 
May 9th  Change to May 16th 
August 8th 
November 14th 
December 12th  
 

 
 
 

Item 1 Nov.



 

 Page 2 
 

D. CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the Board of Directors and 
will be enacted by one motion at the appropriate time. There will be no separate discussion on these 
items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and will be 
considered separately.  
 

1. Approval of minutes September 21st, 2019-Defer to next meeting to achieve a quorom 
 
 
E. TREASURER’S REPORT  

 
2. Financial Reports  

• Financial Report through October 31st, 2019 
• Warrant listing 
• Asset Investments and Options  

 
Wendy Cumming gave an update on the Financial Report and a brief discussion on some 
investment options that may be reviewed in the future.  Suggested that the Board review a 
draft investment policy statement before making any decisions (add to February meeting).   
 
Raphael moves to approve the financial statements, David seconds.  All approve 
 
F. MEETING reports   

 
2. Meetings attended by Directors at District expense since the last meeting of the Board 

(per                 AB1234 requirements). Such reports may be made orally or in writing.  
 
John, David and Mike met with the County and Engineeer of Record on October 22nd and Nov 
7th with the Engineer of Record.   

  
G. NEW BUSINESS  

 
4. ITEM – Designate officers for the Board-Defer to next meeting.  Provide job descriptions. 

a. Board report  
b. Public comment  
c. Board discussion  
d. Board action /direction 
 

5. ITEM-Review Emergency Procedures and Contact Information Sheet 
a. Board report  
b. Public comment  
c. Board discussion  
d. Board action /direction 

Reviewed the Emergency Procedures and Contact Information.  Sarah was directed to review 
with Engineer of Record and bring back for finalization at the next meeting.   
 
 

Item 1 Nov



 

 Page 3 
 

6. ITEM-Designate a signee(s) for the emergency line of credit with Santa Cruz County Bank and 
discuss adequacy of current bank signatures lists 

a. Board report  
b. Public comment  
c. Board discussion  
d. Board action /direction 

 
Raphael moves to designate John Cullen and David Ferrari as signatories on the emergency 
line of credit as both are already signatories on our other SCCB accounts.  John is authorized 
to sign the documents and both John and David are authorized to advance funds from the loan.  
David F. seconds.  All approve.   
 
7. ITEM – Review FY 2018/19 audit report. 

a. Board report  
b. Public comment  
c. Board discussion  
d. Board action /direction 

 
Wendy presented the clean opinion from the auditors.   
 
David F moves to approve the draft audit report and directs Wendy to send it for finalization.  
Raphael seconds.  All approve.   
 
John will present the audit findings at the homeowners meeting in December.   
 
8. ITEM – Review results of the County planning meeting and discuss next steps to be taken for 
submission of a maintenance plan for the seawall. 

a. Board report  
b. Public comment  
c. Board discussion  
d. Board action /direction 

 
John provided an update on the County planning meeting on October 22nd, where they and 
introduced our new Engineer of Record (EofR) to County personnel and discussed the plan 
moving forward.  EofR will develop a detailed construction methodology and documentation 
we have and advise on what is needed to move the plan forward for SC County to issue us a 
grading permit.  SC County and GHAD will then approach the Coastal Commission with the 
plan for review.  
 
November 7th follow up meeting: CE&G suggested a survey of the seawall to update 
information.  Can do a drone survey of current conditions based on the ARUP information.  
$6,000 for the critical areas and $10,000 for the entire seawall.  Will secure data from ARUP, 
put together report and at the December meeting provide updates. Set up with Dan for a call in 
to the December meeting.  

Item 1 Nov



 

 Page 4 
 

David F. moves to hire CE&G for the survey of the entire wall and authorizes expenditure of 
$10,000.   Raphael seconds. All approve.   
 
Raphael will research grant possibilities-including the Coastal Conservancy.   
 
 
H. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND CONCERNS 

Members of the Board of Directors may address items of concern at this time, and may request that 
items be placed on future agendas in accordance with the By-laws of the Board. 

I. ADJOURNMENT  
 

Adjourned at 10:36am.  

 
Attest: 
 
  
Sarah Mansergh 
Clerk of the Board 
Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District  
 
The next Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for December 14th, 2019, at 9:00 a.m. at the 
offices of the Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District, Board Room, Pajaro Dunes, 2661 
Beach Road, Watsonville, CA 95076. Individuals who require special accommodations are requested 
to contact the District Clerk by calling (831) 818-9253, no less than 72 hours prior to the meeting or 
in the case of a Special Meeting, as soon as possible after the Agenda is posted. For copies of the 
agenda will be available 72 hours prior to the meeting and may be obtained by contacting the District 
agenda and board packet e-mail pdghad@gmail.org or (831) 761-7744. All meetings are noticed and 
conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

 

Item 1 Nov



 

 Page 1 
 

 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAJARO DUNES GEOLOGIC HAZARD ABATEMENT DISTRICT 

MEADOW ROOM, Pajaro Dunes, 2661 Beach Road, Watsonville, CA 95076 

Please note the change of venue to the Meadow Room 
Saturday, December 14th, 2019 9:00 a.m. 

 
A. OPEN SESSION CALL TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
Roll Call 
 
John Cullen, Secretary present 
David Ferrari, Community Liaison-not 
present 
Jim Griffin, Director –not present 

Jack Feinstein, Director-present 
Raphael Shannon, Director-present 
Sarah Mansergh, Clerk-present

 
Michael Rodriguez-attorney also present 
 
 
B. MEMBER COMMENTS  

 
Matters under the jurisdiction of the Board and not on the posted agenda, may be addressed by members 
of the public before the Board for consideration. However, California law prohibits the Board from taking 
action on any matter which is not on the posted agenda unless it is determined to be an emergency by the 
Board of PDGHAD. Any person wishing to address the Board during the Member Comment period shall 
be permitted to be heard for up to 3 minutes, A) individuals may speak only once and B) the Board is 
unable to address any owner comments in depth, but may choose to direct the Clerk to follow-up on the 
matter for a future meeting. 
 
C. PRESIDENT’S REMARKS 

 
The President will use this opportunity to inform the public of issues affecting the District and other 
items of a general nature not otherwise provided for on this agenda.  
 

2020 Regular Meeting Dates 
February 8th 
April 11th 
May 16th 
August 8th 
November 14th 
December 12th 

 
D. CONSENT CALENDAR  

 
All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the Board of Directors and 
will be enacted by one motion at the appropriate time. There will be no separate discussion on these 

Item 1 Dec



 

 Page 2 
 

items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and will be 
considered separately.  
 

1. Approval of minutes September 21st, 2019and November 9th, Deferred for quoroms 
E. TREASURER’S REPORT  

 
2. Financial Reports  

• Financial Report through November 30th, 2019 
The financial report through Nov. 30th, 2019 was reviewed by the Board-no major changes.  
 
F. MEETING reports   

 
3.  Meetings attended by Directors at District expense since the last meeting of the Board (per                 
AB1234 requirements). Such reports may be made orally or in writing.  
No meetings attended 
  

G. NEW BUSINESS  
 

 
4. ITEM-Review Updated Emergency Procedures and Contact Information Sheet 

a. Board report  
b. Public comment  
c. Board discussion  
d. Board action /direction 

 
Updates to document: Larger disaster have a return arrow and make sure Dan shows up in the 
bubble of EOR. Add Mike as legal representation and Sarah as Clerk.   
 
5. ITEM- Review officers job descriptions 

a. Board report  
b. Public comment  
c. Board discussion  
d. Board action /direction 

 
Question from John: What was the wording of the charge from the County Board of 
Supervisors.  Sarah to look at docs from formation of GHAD and bring back at a future 
meeting.    
 
6. ITEM – Receive an update on permitting documentation and drone survey from Dan Peluso. 

a. Board report  
b. Public comment  
c. Board discussion  
d. Board action /direction 

 
Dan called in to the meeting and provided an update on the drone survey and the transfer of 
documents from ARUP have been received. Jack brought up the point that this map may be 

Item 1 Dec



 

 Page 3 
 

used by PDA to address the flood designations from FEMA.  Discussed some strategies for 
moving forward with the County.  Dan will return a list of next steps in the process and a 
timeline as projected for end of January.   
 
Things Dan suggested be added to the grading permit request: Staging areas, title sheet, access 
route, cross sections and details on where the rocks will be staged during the process, 
specifications and cost estimates.   
 
 
 
H. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND CONCERNS 

Members of the Board of Directors may address items of concern at this time, and may request that 
items be placed on future agendas in accordance with the By-laws of the Board. 

To communicate at HOA meeting: Completed 18/19 fiscal year under budget.  19/20 budget 
updates with technical services, clean 2018/19 audit, met with SC County about the repairs, 
completed an inspection, updated EOR and is preparing a permit application, encourage 
Pelicans homeowner to join the Board.  

 

I. ADJOURNMENT  

The next Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for February 8th, 2020, at 9:00 a.m. at the 
offices of the Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District, Board Room, Pajaro Dunes, 2661 
Beach Road, Watsonville, CA 95076. Individuals who require special accommodations are requested 
to contact the District Clerk by calling (831) 818-9253, no less than 72 hours prior to the meeting or 
in the case of a Special Meeting, as soon as possible after the Agenda is posted. For copies of the 
agenda will be available 72 hours prior to the meeting and may be obtained by contacting the District 
agenda and board packet e-mail pdghad@gmail.org or (831) 761-7744. All meetings are noticed and 
conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:58am. 

Item 1 Dec



 Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District
 Balance Sheet
 As of March 31, 2020

Mar 31, 20

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

100000 · SCCB Zone 1 - 3957 55,777

100001 · SCCB Zone 2 - 3965 92,298

100002 · SCCB Z1 Emerg - 1877 254,184

100003 · SCCB LTD-  0208 49,139

100400 · Union Bank Bond Holding 324,028

Total Checking/Savings 775,426

Accounts Receivable

120000 · Assessments Receivable 81,824

Total Accounts Receivable 81,824

Other Current Assets

121500 · Prepaid Insurance 15,273

121600 · Prepaid Expenses 24,072

Total Other Current Assets 39,345

Total Current Assets 896,595

Fixed Assets

150000 · Riverwall 3,000,000

160000 · Accumulated Depreciation -1,524,997

Total Fixed Assets 1,475,003
TOTAL ASSETS 2,371,598

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

200000 · Accounts Payable 8,758

Total Accounts Payable 8,758

Other Current Liabilities

220000 · Accrued Interest 5,965

255000 · Unearned Revenue 10,675

Total Other Current Liabilities 16,640

Total Current Liabilities 25,398

Long Term Liabilities

285000 · Bonds Payable Z2 1,165,000

286000 · Bonds Payable Discount Z2 -52,250

286500 · Amort. Bond Discount Z2 31,339

Total Long Term Liabilities 1,144,089

Total Liabilities 1,169,487

Equity

30000 · Opening Balance Equity 608,448

32000 · Retained Earnings 450,480

Net Income 143,182

Total Equity 1,202,110
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,371,597

 Note ~ GHAD owns $15k of rock that is stored at Granite Rock

1

Item 2 pg



 Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 July 2019 through March 2020
Zone 1 Zone 2

Jul '19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

410000 · Assessment Income 98,049                    98,070     (21)                         100%

410020 · Emergency Reserve Fund 136,498                  136,498   -                         100%

410050 · Assess. Income PDA Stairs 3,930                      3,930       -                         100%

Total Income 238,477                  238,498   (21)                         100%

Expense

610155 · Postage and Mailings 66                           1,250       (1,184)                    5%

61510 · Advertising -                          500          (500)                       0%

615115 · Office Expense -                          400          (400)                       0%

615140 · Audit Expense 9,000                      10,000     (1,000)                    90%

61518 · Clerk 2,064                      6,300       (4,236)                    33%

615415 · Accounting 11,014                    13,500     (2,486)                    82%

615416 · Assessment Admin. Expense 2,519                      8,000       (5,481)                    31%

615617 · Website Maintenance -                          1,250       (1,250)                    0%

615650 · Officer Election -                          2,475       (2,475)                    0%

615655 · Dues -                          500          (500)                       0%

615656 · Board/Clerk Education -                          1,500       (1,500)                    0%

616500 · Legal Fees 7,920                      13,500     (5,580)                    59%

617250 · Seawall Inspections 2,506                      6,000       (3,494)                    42%

619010 · Technical Consulting Costs 31,481                    92,000     (60,519)                  34%

628500 · Insurance Expense 11,250                    11,250     -                         100%

629030 · SBA Repayment to PHA Z2 -                          

650000 · Bank Service Charges 1,034                      

750000 · Depreciation Expense Z2 -                          

Total Expense 78,854                    168,425   (89,571)                  47%

Net Ordinary Income 159,623                  70,073     89,550                   228%

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

410070 · Interest & Penalty Income 1,022                      35            987                        2920%

Total Other Income 1,022                      35            987                        2920%

Other Expense

855000 · Interest Expense -                          -           -                         0%

955500 · Interest Bond Discount -                          

Total Other Expense -                          -           -                         0%

Net Other Income 1,022                      35            987                        2920%
Net Income 160,645                  70,108     90,537                   229%

2

Item 2 pg.



 Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 July 2019 through March 2020
Zone 1

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

410000 · Assessment Income

410020 · Emergency Reserve Fund

410050 · Assess. Income PDA Stairs

Total Income

Expense

610155 · Postage and Mailings

61510 · Advertising

615115 · Office Expense

615140 · Audit Expense

61518 · Clerk

615415 · Accounting

615416 · Assessment Admin. Expense

615617 · Website Maintenance

615650 · Officer Election

615655 · Dues

615656 · Board/Clerk Education

616500 · Legal Fees

617250 · Seawall Inspections

619010 · Technical Consulting Costs

628500 · Insurance Expense

629030 · SBA Repayment to PHA Z2

650000 · Bank Service Charges

750000 · Depreciation Expense Z2

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

410070 · Interest & Penalty Income

Total Other Income

Other Expense

855000 · Interest Expense

955500 · Interest Bond Discount

Total Other Expense

Net Other Income
Net Income

Zone 2 TOTAL

Jul '19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

176,156                  176,156   -                         100%

-                          

1,254                      1,254       -                         100%

177,410                  177,410   -                         100%

-                          

-                          

-                          

-                          

617                         1,948       (1,331)                    32%

-                          

328                         1,039       (711)                       32%

-                          

-                          

-                          

-                          

-                          

-                          

-                          

-                          

69,642                    69,642     -                         100%

188                         375          (187)                       50%

74,997                    75,001     (4)                           100%

145,772                  148,005   (2,233)                    98%

31,638                    29,405     2,233                     108%

516                         113          403                        457%

516                         113          403                        457%

48,053                    48,053     -                         100%

1,566                      1,566       -                         100%

49,619                    49,619     -                         100%

(49,103)                   (49,506)    403                        99%
(17,465)                   (20,101)    2,636                     87%

3

Item 2 pg



 Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 July 2019 through March 2020
Zone 1

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

410000 · Assessment Income

410020 · Emergency Reserve Fund

410050 · Assess. Income PDA Stairs

Total Income

Expense

610155 · Postage and Mailings

61510 · Advertising

615115 · Office Expense

615140 · Audit Expense

61518 · Clerk

615415 · Accounting

615416 · Assessment Admin. Expense

615617 · Website Maintenance

615650 · Officer Election

615655 · Dues

615656 · Board/Clerk Education

616500 · Legal Fees

617250 · Seawall Inspections

619010 · Technical Consulting Costs

628500 · Insurance Expense

629030 · SBA Repayment to PHA Z2

650000 · Bank Service Charges

750000 · Depreciation Expense Z2

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

410070 · Interest & Penalty Income

Total Other Income

Other Expense

855000 · Interest Expense

955500 · Interest Bond Discount

Total Other Expense

Net Other Income
Net Income

TOTAL

Jul '19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

274,205                  274,226   (21)                         100%

136,498                  136,498   -                         100%

5,184                      5,184       -                         100%

415,887                  415,908   (21)                         100%

66                           1,250       (1,184)                    5%

-                          500          (500)                       0%

-                          400          (400)                       0%

9,000                      10,000     (1,000)                    90%

2,681                      8,248       (5,567)                    33%

11,014                    13,500     (2,486)                    82%

2,847                      9,039       (6,192)                    31%

-                          1,250       (1,250)                    0%

-                          2,475       (2,475)                    0%

-                          500          (500)                       0%

-                          1,500       (1,500)                    0%

7,920                      13,500     (5,580)                    59%

2,506                      6,000       (3,494)                    42%

31,481                    92,000     (60,519)                  34%

11,250                    11,250     -                         100%

69,642                    69,642     -                         100%

1,222                      375          847                        326%

74,997                    75,001     (4)                           100%

224,626                  316,430   (91,804)                  71%

191,261                  99,478     91,783                   192%

1,538                      148          1,390                     1039%

1,538                      148          1,390                     1039%

48,053                    48,053     -                         100%

1,566                      1,566       -                         100%

49,619                    49,619     -                         100%

(48,081)                   (49,471)    1,390                     97%
143,180                  50,007     93,173                   286%

4

Item 2 pg



 Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District
 Bank Account Activity

 As of March 31, 2020
Type Date Num Name Debit Credit Balance

100000 · SCCB Zone 1 - 3957 21,318.11

Bill Pmt -Check 02/07/2020 1382 Jarvis, Fay, & Gibson, LLP 4,060.00 17,258.11

Bill Pmt -Check 02/07/2020 1383 Sarah Mansergh 499.46 16,758.65

Bill Pmt -Check 02/07/2020 1384 Wendy L. Cumming, CPA 1,691.25 15,067.40

Bill Pmt -Check 02/12/2020 1385 KBK Insurance 15,106.11 -38.71

Deposit 02/28/2020 Santa Cruz County 58,305.63 58,266.92

Bill Pmt -Check 03/03/2020 1386 Hutchinson & Bloodgood 1,500.00 56,766.92

Bill Pmt -Check 03/03/2020 1387 Wendy L. Cumming, CPA 990.00 55,776.92

Total 100000 · SCCB Zone 1 - 3957 58,305.63 23,846.82 55,776.92

100001 · SCCB Zone 2 - 3965 28,779.63

Bill Pmt -Check 02/07/2020 1331 Pelican Home Owner's Association 7,738.00 21,041.63

Bill Pmt -Check 02/07/2020 1332 Sarah Mansergh 149.19 20,892.44

Deposit 02/28/2020 Santa Cruz County 180,544.61 201,437.05

Bill Pmt -Check 03/03/2020 1333 Pajaro Dunes Geologic Abatement District 101,401.52 100,035.53

Bill Pmt -Check 03/03/2020 1334 Pelican Home Owner's Association 7,738.00 92,297.53

Total 100001 · SCCB Zone 2 - 3965 180,544.61 117,026.71 92,297.53

100002 · SCCB Z1 Emerg - 1877 173,056.11

Deposit 02/28/2020 Santa Cruz County 81,128.12 254,184.23

Total 100002 · SCCB Z1 Emerg - 1877 81,128.12 0.00 254,184.23

100003 · SCCB LTD-  0208 49,130.50

Deposit 02/29/2020 3.89 49,134.39

Deposit 03/31/2020 4.16 49,138.55

Total 100003 · SCCB LTD-  0208 8.05 0.00 49,138.55

100400 · Union Bank Bond Holding 253,723.86

Check 02/28/2020 atm MUFG Union Bank, N.A. 31,097.50 222,626.36

Bill 02/28/2020 Pajaro Dunes Geologic Abatement District 101,401.52 324,027.88

Total 100400 · Union Bank Bond Holding 101,401.52 31,097.50 324,027.88
TOTAL 421,387.93 171,971.03 775,425.11

5

Item 2 pg



Pajaro Dunes GHAD

Rock Revetment Repair

Pajaro Dunes Resort, Watsonville, California

30% Engineer's Estimate

7 April 2020

Description Qty Unit Unit
Cost Total

1 Mobilization (5%) 1          LS 140,000$       140,000$     

* 2 Water Pollution Control 1          LS 30,000$         30,000$       

* 3 Traffic Control 1          LS 20,000$         20,000$       

* 4 Clearing and Grubbing 1          LS 20,000$         20,000$       

* 5 Remove and Replace Beach Access Stairs 5          EA 35,000$         175,000$     

* 6 Steel Sheet Piling (Excavation and Rock Revetment Shoring) 1          LS 1,000,000$     1,000,000$   

* 7 Excavation Dewatering 1          LS 100,000$       100,000$     

8 (F) Temporary Excavation (Sand) 14,000  CY 12$                168,000$     

9 (F) Remove and Stockpile Revetment Rock (Pajaro Dunes) 10,600  TON 19$                201,400$     

10 (F) Remove and Stockpile Revetment Rock (State of California) 450       TON 19$                8,550$         

11 Rock Slope Protection Fabric (Class 10) 3,900    SQYD 4$                  15,600$       

12 Marine Cell 190       EA -$              -$            

13 Rock Slope Protection (1/4 T, Method B) 9,200    CY 100$              920,000$     

14 (F) Rock Slope Protection (4 T, Method A) 10,600  TON 30$                318,000$     

15 (F) Sand Backfill 11,000  CY 25$                275,000$     

Total 3,116,550$   

Total +30% 4,051,600$   

Total + 30% (Rounded) 4,100,000$  

Legend

Notes

Item No.

1. Estimate does not include soft costs such as environmental permitting, 

biological monitoring, engineering design, construction managerment

(F) = Final Pay Item (construction quantity will not be measured for payment)

* = Item was not included in estimate prepared by ARUP dated 5 January 2015

PajaroDunesGHAD-RevetmentRepair-30PercentEstimate-20200408.xlsx Prepared by: Cal Engineering Geology, Inc.

Item 4 pg 1

CE&G estimates for costs associated with 1865 ft of repairs based on 30% design



Notes

Revetment Length = 1,865.0   ft Existing and repair

Revetment Width = 10.0        Existing and repair

Revetment Height = 8.0          ft Existing and repair

Revetment Repair Foundation Height = 4.4          ft New marine cell

Revetment Unit Weight Calculation

Revetment Specific Gravity 3.0          Assumed

Rock Density 187.2      Calculated

Revetment Void Ratio = 25.0        % Assumed

Revetment Unit Weight = 141.0      pcf Calculated

Shoring and Excavation

Shoring Length = 145.0      ft For 2 lots at a time

Shoring Depth = 40.0        ft Assumed

Excavation Width = 16.0        ft 3 ft clear, ea side

Excavation Depth = 17.0        ft Assumes beach at elev 12

Marine Cell Materials and Cost

Triton UX200 Geogrid= = 11,749.6 ft 200 ft/roll 59.00 rolls $608.00 /roll 35,872.00$   

Bodkin bars = 374.0      ea 50 bars/box 8.00   boxes $150.00 /box 1,200.00$     

= Delivery 10,000.00$   

= Installation (3x material cost) 111,216.00$ 

Project Dimensions Non-Caltrans Costs

PajaroDunesGHAD-RevetmentRepair-30PercentEstimate-20200408.xlsx Prepared by: Cal Engineering Geology, Inc.

Item 4 pg 2

CE&G estimates for costs associated with 1865 ft of repairs based on 30% design



Revetment Repair Design

DRAFT Rev2 January 5, 2015

Pajaro Dunes GHAD
Watsonville, CA

Prepared for:

Job Number: 217563‐00

Cost Estimate Provided By:
Arup North America, Ltd.
560 Mission Street, Suite 700
San Francisco, CA 94105   USA

www.arup.com

Budget Authorization, Level‐3 Design Development Cost Estimate

t : + 1 415.957.9445
f : + 1 415.957.9096

Page 1 of 1

Previous estimates from ARUP for costs associated with 1416 ft of repairs

Item 4 pg 3



January 5, 2015
Revetment Repair Design
Pajaro Dunes GHAD
Watsonville, CA

Budget Authorization, Level-3 Design Development Cost Estimate

BASIS OF ESTIMATE

1 Project Description
Repair 1416 ft seawall in front of Lots 1, 3, 6, 8, 9, 94, 95, 97 to 104, and 107 located at Pajaro Dunes community in Watsonville, 
California.

2 Estimate Scope of the Project
The estimate scope is a Design Development cost estimate.

3 Purpose of this Estimate
To study and estimate the likely cost.

4 Documentations
Documentation received to develop this cost estimate:
 -  Revetment repair design dated 06/11/2013

5 Inclusion
Indirect cost @ 15% of Supervision, Field Office Equipment, Temporary Facilities, Utilities, Specials, Tools-Rentals, Cleanup
Contractor's OH & P at 15%
Unknown construction contingency at 10%

6 Exclusion
Preliminary Engineering
Final Design
Project Management for Design & Construction,
Construction Administration & Management
Professional Liability & Other Non-Construction Insurance
Legal; Permits; Review Fees; Surveys, Testing, Inspection, start up
Design contingency
Estimate contingency
Escalation for design

7 Total Direct Cost 
As deliberated in Summary Direct Costs for "Contractor" include Labor, Material, Equipment and Subcontracts.

Arup North America Ltd. Page 1 of 2

Previous estimates from ARUP for costs associated with 1416 ft of repairs

Previous estimates from ARUP for costs associated with 1416 ft of repairs

Item 4 pg 4



January 5, 2015
Revetment Repair Design
Pajaro Dunes GHAD
Watsonville, CA

Budget Authorization, Level-3 Design Development Cost Estimate

BASIS OF ESTIMATE
8 Estimating Classification

Estimates are used primarily as inputs for budgeting costs, value analysis, decision making, asset/project  planning, and schedule 
control processes. Cost estimates are determined using various calculations  that forecast the future cost of materials, equipment, 
labor and other resources.

We classify a estimate as a level-3 estimate, with the level of detail in design documents. Accuracy range is classified in LOW and 
HIGH factors. Low factor varies from -10% to -20%, and High factor varies +10% to +40%.

9 Assumptions
Assume 1416 lf for Revetment Repair
Assume the project is constructed during dry period.
Assume 1.5 slope for sand excavation.
On-site soil can be used  for backfill.
Assume the density of filled rounded Cobbles is 1 cy/ton.

Arup North America Ltd. Page 2 of 2

Previous estimates from ARUP for costs associated with 1416 ft of repairs

Item 4 pg 5



Job No.: 217563‐00 January 5, 2015
Project: Pajaro Dunes Rev1
Location: Watsonville, CA BB/AE

No. Description Quantity Unit Rate Amount
1 Mobilization and Demobilization 1               ls 15,000.00$     15,000.00$             
2 Site Preparation 2.28          Acre 5,844.18$       13,298.33$             
3 Excavation

3.1 Sand Excavation 14,764      cy 4.22$              62,304.76$             
3.2 Riprap Removal and Stockpile 6,514        ton 31.42$            204,669.52$           

4 Backfill
4.1 Sand Backfill with Compaction 12,457      cy 3.19$              39,736.57$             
4.2 Riprap-Reuse Rock 5,664        Ton 31.42$            177,966.54$           
4.3 Riprap-New Rock 2,427        Ton 81.42$            197,645.30$           

5 Marine Cell 1,416        lf 215.26$          304,809.54$           
6 Filter Fabric 4,287        sy 3.22$              13,805.21$             

7 Access Road Repair/Maintenance 
of Traffic 14             month 10,000.00$     140,000.00$           

1,169,235.76$        
15% 175,385.36$           

1,344,621.13$        
15% 201,693.17$           

1,546,314.30$        
10% 154,631.43$           

1,700,945.73$        

-10% 1,530,851.15$        
1,700,945.73$        

20% 2,041,134.87$        

Effective cost per 100 lineal feet based on most likely cost estimate 120,123.29$           

Projected Likely Cost Estimate 1,700,945.73$        

Maximum cost

Construction Contingency (F=E×10%)
Subtotal (E=C+D)

Total Construction Cost (G=E+F)

Date Submitted:
Revision:
Prepared / Checked by:

Direct Cost (A)
Indirect Cost (B=A×15%)
Subtotal (C=A+B)
Contractor's Overhead and Profit (D=C×15%)

Most Likely Cost
Minimum cost

Previous estimates from ARUP for costs associated with 1416 ft of repairs

Item 4 pg 6



 
 
 
 

Please refer to the Design 
Documents Sent as a Separate 

PDF file entitled:  
 
 

PDGHAD_Plans_30P.pdf 
 

Item 4 pg 7-21 design plans attached separately

GHAD Board Packet 4-11-20  Part B



COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ Prepared by: 
INTEREST APPORTIONMENT Updated on: 
GENERAL FUND EARNINGS

INTEREST ON CASH IN TREASURY GL 101 INTEREST ON CASH IN TREASURY GL 101
RCUTVI GEN FUND RCUTVI GEN FUND

JOB REF TOTAL Prefix ID & FX % OF JOB REF TOTAL Prefix ID & FX % OF 
APPORTIONED 40430/40434 TOTAL RATE APPORTIONED 40430/40434 TOTAL RATE

A B C A B C

1896863 JUL 1,629,218.53         285,242.46             17.508% 2.350% 1507080 JUL 1,159,069.35         204,089.92             17.608% 1.610%

1931145 AUG 1,558,637.82         255,055.60             16.364% 2.294% 1541369 AUG 1,037,183.10         189,757.95             18.296% 1.591%

1951581 SEPT 1,402,182.82         220,160.88             15.701% 2.293% 1569809 SEPT 953,336.39            169,123.49             17.740% 1.630%

1ST QTR 4,590,039.17 760,458.94 16.568% 2.312% 1ST QTR 3,149,588.84 562,971.36 17.874% 1.610%

1984851 OCT 1,376,063.92         209,558.10             15.229% 2.253% 1600059 OCT 1,004,120.19         179,559.33             17.882% 1.725%

2011858 NOV 1,360,003.58         307,301.39             22.596% 2.172% 1625078 NOV 1,117,755.80         260,587.77             23.313% 1.870%

2039628 DEC 1,509,718.59         324,393.65             21.487% 2.024% 1654975 DEC 1,441,926.17         361,715.64             25.086% 1.994%

2ND QTR 4,245,786.09 841,253.14 19.814% 2.150% 2ND QTR 3,563,802.16 801,862.74 22.500% 1.863%

2069614 JAN 1,580,642.15         291,418.12             18.437% 2.104% 1684469 JAN 1,549,967.66         338,432.28             21.835% 2.145%

FEB 1713040 FEB 1,405,091.25         291,644.49             20.756% 2.246%

MAR 1744974 MAR 1,552,925.83         280,591.97             18.069% 2.243%

3RD QTR 1,580,642.15 291,418.12 18.437% 2.104% 3RD QTR 4,507,984.74 910,668.74 20.201% 2.211%

APR 1776245 APR 1,773,170.47         386,768.41             21.812% 2.365%

MAY 1811832 MAY 1,724,728.28         315,877.59             18.315% 2.263%

JUNE 1853329 JUNE 1,654,272.76         302,413.23             18.281% 2.361%

4TH QTR 0.00 0.00 0.000% 0.000% 4TH QTR 5,152,171.51 1,005,059.23 19.507% 2.330%

TOTALS 10,416,467.41 1,893,130.20 18.174% 2.213% TOTALS 16,373,547.25 3,280,562.07 20.036% 2.004%

FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19

Trevor MacGruer
2/4/2020

S:\Caroline & Others after 5-6-16\INTEREST\Interest 1920\19-20 Int History19-20 Updated on 2/13/2020

Item 5 pg 1



Item 5 pg 2



Item 5 pg 3



Item 5 pg 4



Item 5 pg 5



Item 5 pg 6



Item 5 pg 7



Item 5 pg 8



Item 5 pg 9



Item 5 pg 10



Item 5 pg 11



Item 5 pg 12



Item 5 pg 13



Item 5 pg 14



Item 5 pg 15



Item 5 pg 16



Item 5 pg 17



Item 5 pg 18



Item 5 pg 19



 PAJARO DUNES GEOLOGIC HAZARD ABATEMENT DISTRICT - ZONE 1

BUDGET FOR FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

 

  
FY21 FY20 404823 404853

FUNDING SOURCES FOR ZONE 1 Spending Previously FY21 Operating Emergency 
Budget Received Assessment Assessment Reserve

Property Assessments: 392,934$       
     From Members 381,330         
     From PDA for Stairways 11,604           
     Interest income 50                  
Total Revenue for Zone 1 392,984         

 
Administrative and Operating Expenses    

General and Administrative Expenses
Printing and mailings 1,550$        1,550$           
Communications and Website maintenance 1,550          1,550             
Office Supplies 568             568                
Advertising 517             517                
Insurance 15,497        15,497           
Membership Dues 517             517                

Total General and Administrative Expenses 20,197        -              20,197           
Professional Services

Legal Consultant 18,596        18,596           
Contract costs for Assessment calculations 8,265          8,265             
Audit Fees 10,331        10,331           
Accountant  Contract 18,596        18,596           
Engineer Fees/County permit 122,293      -              122,293         
Clerk Contract/Admin. & Outreach 8,678        8,678             

Total Professional Services 186,759      -              186,759         
Special District Compliance Costs

Elections 2,557          2,557             
Board and Clerk Training 2,273          2,273             

Total Special District Compliance Costs 4,830          4,830             

Seawall Annual Inspection 6,199          6,199             

Total Administrative and Operating Expenses 217,984      217,984         217,984         

Capital Repair Costs/Expenses and Reserve 175,000      175,000         175,000        

     Total Administrative Budget 392,984      392,984         
  

Net Change in Fund Balance -$               
 

County Object Number

Item 6 pg 1



PAJARO DUNES GEOLOGIC HAZARD ABATEMENT DISTRICT - ZONE 2

DRAFT  BUDGET FOR FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021  

 Current 
Year budget

REVENUE FOR ZONE 2

Property Assessments 239,147                    
     Pelican 237,879                    
     Total PDA for stairway 1,267                        

Interest 150                           

Total Revenue for Zone 2 239,297                    

EXPENDITURES FOR ZONE 2

Administrative Costs
Contract for Assessment Administration 1,073                        
Accountant/Clerk Contract 2,683                        
Bond Fee 656                           
Bank Service Charges 517                           

     Total Administrative Costs 4,929                        

Riverwall Inspection -                            
 
Loan Payments

SBA Loan Payment 92,856                      
Payment on bond issue (82 members) 141,512                    

     Total loan payments 234,368                    

Total Expenditures for Zone 2 239,297                    

Net Change in Fund Balance -                            

4/6/2020     11:44 AM

Item 6 pg 2



Job Descriptions for Officers 
 

The Board usually elects a President, Vice-President.  Currently the Treasurer duties are 
performed by the accountant and overseen by the President.  The District Clerk has acted 

as Secretary in the past but has also been a position within the Board.  Position 
designations or modifications of this may be made by a  majority vote of the Board.   

 
Article 8: Duties of the Officers  
 
 8.1 The President shall: 
  8.1.1  Call all meetings of the Board of Directors. 
 

8.1.2 Oversee the preparation of the agenda for each meeting, including 
resolutions, reports, communications, contracts, documents or other 
matters.  Assistance in this regard may be provided by the Clerk and 
District Counsel.   

 
  8.1.3  Preside at all meetings of the District. 
 
  8.1.4  Organize and oversee Assessment Elections. 
 
  8.1.5  Supervise communications between the District and other governmental 

agencies or other members of the public. 
 

8.1.6 Nominate and appoint members of Board committees and subcommittees, 
subject to approval of the majority of the Board members. 

 
 8.2 The Vice-President shall: 
  8.2.1  Preside in the absence of the President. 
 
  8.2.2  Perform such other duties as are assigned by the Board of Directors. 
 
  8.2.3 Be familiar with the District activities and the Geologic Hazard Abatement 

District codes and bylaws.   
 
 8.3 The Treasurer shall: 
  8.3.1  Oversee financial records of the District. 
   Review bank reconciliations at least quarterly. 
 
  8.3.2  Oversee audits as required by State law. 
 
  8.3.3  See that all funds are kept in financial institutions approved by the Board. 
 
  8.3.4  Submit financial statements of all income and expenditures of the District 

at the end of each fiscal year. 
 

Item 7 pg 1



  8.3.5  Perform such other duties as are assigned by the Board of Directors. 
 
Other Job descriptions: 
 
Secretary: 

1) Reviews meeting minutes 
2) Assists in drafting resolutions 
3) Assists in drafting updates to the Bylaws and other governing documents 

 
Community Liaison: 

1) Develops communications for distribution to homeowners. 
2) Interfaces with homeowners at events and special meetings 
3) Creates strategies for outreach  

  

Item 7 pg 2



 

 

 
 
 
 

Item 8 pg 1



 
Some Theme Ideas: 
 
 
View others at: www.wordpress.org/themes   
 

 

 

http://www.wordpress.org/themes
Item 8 pg 2


